
Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

City Council Workshop & Meeting   
June 4, 2018 

Agenda 
 

                                                                                                                
5:30 P.M.  Workshop  

A. Joint TIF Policy – Michael Chammings (20 minutes) 
B. Opportunity Zone – Michael Chammings (15 minutes) 
C. LA 911 – Paul LeClair (45 minutes) 
D. Marijuana Moratorium – Phil Crowell (10 minutes) 

 
If needed, workshop discussions will resume after the Council Meeting is adjourned. 
 
7:00 P.M.  City Council Meeting  
 
I. Consent Items – All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered as routine and will be approved 

in one motion.   There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Councilor or citizen so 
requests.  If requested, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered in the 
order it appears on the agenda.   

 
1. Order 49-06042018*  

Accepting the transfer of $11,000.  (5% of $220,000) in forfeiture assets in Rem in U.S. Currency 
to the Auburn Police Department (U.S. Department of Treasury Seizure 04180002-01 – Scott 
Ferland). 

 

II.          Minutes – May 21, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
  

III. Communications, Presentations and Recognitions  

• Communications – Liberty Festival Mass Gathering/Special Event Application 

 
IV. Open Session – Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 

related to City business which is not on this agenda.   
 
V.          Unfinished Business - None 
 

VI.      New Business  
 

1. Order 50-06042018  

Amending the 2010 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map for the property located at 33 
Dunn Street. 

 



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
2. Ordinance 02-06042018  

Adopting the zone change for 33 Dunn Street – 1st reading. 
 

3. Order 51-06042018  
Authorizing the Finance Director to execute the issuance of general obligation bonds and a tax levy 
therefore. Public hearing and first reading. Passage requires an affirmative vote of 5 Councilors at the 
second and final reading. 
 

4. Order 52-06042018  
Reallocation of bonds. Public hearing and first reading. Passage requires an affirmative vote of 5 
Councilors at the second and final reading. 

 
5. Resolve 07-06042018  

Adopting the Appropriations Resolve for Fiscal Year 2019. Public hearing and first reading. 
Passage requires an affirmative vote of 4 Councilors at the second and final reading. 

 

VII. Reports 
  

A. Mayor’s Report  

B. City Councilors’ Reports   

C. City Manager Report  

VIII.      Open Session - Members of the public are invited to speak to the Council about any issue directly 
related to City business which is not on this agenda. 
 

IX. Executive Session  
 

X. Adjournment 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

City Council Workshop Date: June 4, 2018    
 
Author:  Michael Chammings, Director of Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject:  Joint TIF Policy 

 

Information:   
The Cities of Auburn and Lewiston have both a Joint Tax Increment Financing Policy and a Joint Economic 

Development Protocol. 

 

The main purpose of the Tax Increment Financing Policy is to identify circumstances in which the Cities of 

Lewiston and Auburn may find themselves in competition for a prospective development and to provide 

guidelines to ensure that competition is managed in such a way as to ensure TIF incentives do not become 

excessive. 

 

Although there were efforts to update the TIF policy in both 2012 and 2016; the policy has not been updated 

since 2004. 

 

The current TIF policy (2004) is outdated, makes references to non-existing entities and to the outdated 

Joint Economic Development Protocol.  

 

We have attached a draft copy of an updated Joint Tax Increment Financing Policy and we will be soliciting 

input from the Mayor and City Council. 

 

We will be addressing the Joint Economic Development Protocol at a future meeting. 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

City Budgetary Impacts: Future impact on City value. 
 

Staff Recommended Action:  Updated Joint Tax Increment Financing Policy. 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Several discussions with the City of Lewiston. 
 

 

City Manager Comments:   

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:   
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Attachment(s):  Current and draft updated Joint Tax Increment Financing Policy. 
 
  





















 

 

 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 

City Council Workshop Date: June 4, 2018    
 
Author:  Michael Chammings, Director of Economic and Community Development 
 

Subject:  Opportunity Zone 

 

Information:   
A census tract in Auburn has been designated as an Opportunity Zone. The purpose of this federal program 

is to encourage development and growth in Low-Income Community census tract areas, with the hope that 

this will stimulate the neighborhood and result in a higher quality of life for the residents. 

 

The tract that has been designated an Opportunity Zone is in New Auburn. This designation comes at an 

appropriate time considering that a re-development plan for the area has been approved and the initial stages 

have started. 

 

Staff will be presenting an overview of this program.   
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

City Budgetary Impacts: Potential positive impact on City value. 
 

Staff Recommended Action: Open for discussion. 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Staff meetings to discuss marketing and utilizing the designated Opportunity 

Zone. 
 

 

City Manager Comments:   

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:  
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Attachment(s):  Frequently ask questions (FAQs) sheet, investment examples and an Opportunity Zone 
memorandum with support documents. 
 
 
  























 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:   June 4, 2018  
 
Author:  Paul M. LeClair, Director LA911 
 

Subject:  LA911 Radio System Proposal Discussion – Continued from May 21, 2018 
 
Information:  Per the request of the Mayor and Council, a representative of the Portland – South Portland Public Safety 
Departments will be in attendance to speak regarding their experience with the 800Mhz radio system. Chief Crowell has 
invited South Portland Police Chief Edward Googins to attend the workshop. Also, Mayor Levesque has extended an 
invitation to the Public to speak regarding the proposed radio project. Director Paul LeClair & Staff will be in attendance 
to answer and address questions and concerns. 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: The estimated cost of the 800Mhz radio system is $4,000,000.00.  
The City of Auburn’s share is 50% - $2,000,000.00 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  The LA911 Committee & Director LeClair respectfully request the Auburn City Council’s 
support of the 800Mhz radio system as part of the FY20 CIP Budget. 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: LA911 Director Paul LeClair presented the attached CIP proposal as part of the agency’s 
FY19 Budget presentation on May 21, 2018.  
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:   
 

Attachments:  
1. LA911 FY19 Budget & CIP presentation 
2. Radio System Subcommittee report 

 



LA911 FY19 Budget Proposal
The proposed FY19 LA911 budget reflects a 6.22% -
$132,918 increase over FY18. 

Personnel Services decreased by -0.66%. Director 
recommends freezing funding for one dispatcher 
position.

Contractual Services increased slightly by 1.46%. 

Supplies & Materials remain flat funded 0.00%.



LA911 FY19 Budget Proposal
Fixed charges increased by 20.95% due to substantial 
adjustments to general liability coverage.

Debt services increased 190%. FY19 Interest 
payments on the Radio Tower Site Projects total 
$40,000.

Capital Outlay reduced by -2.68% by following 
established replacement schedules.



LA911 FY19 Budget Proposal
Revenue through dispatch services agreement 
with the Town of Poland and IT support services for 
Androscoggin County Sheriffs Office generated 
$70,000.

Fund Balance: The Committee has designated 
$22,000 of Fund Balance to offset the FY19 
request. The Committee held the FY17 & FY18 
Budget increases to 0% using available Fund 
Balance. 



LA-911 
CAPITAL REQUEST



Overview
FY18: Improve radio transmit & receive capabilities for all four  

Public Safety Agencies. $200,000 under budget due to 
alternative equipment placement. 

$200,000 will be used to offset the FY19 request.

FY19: Upgrade and replace the LA911 Communications Dispatch 
Center Equipment.

2nd Phase of the LA911 Server Replacement Project

FY20: Upgrade and replace the radio equipment for the Lewiston & 
Auburn Police & Fire Departments. 



FY18 Project Description

Original Request: $1,070,000

Goff Tower & Comm. Shelter. Final cost $528,645.30

Montello Antenna Improvements. Final cost $13,782.57

Replace Comm. Shelter at the Webber Ave. Final cost $216,077.06

Fiber & Microwave Connectivity Final cost $95,261.13

Total FY18 Expenditures are projected to be $853,766.06 

FY18 Balance: $216,233.94



Radio Antenna Project Partner
Androscoggin County

Sheriff Samson received approval from the County 
Commissioners to fund One Third (1/3) of the Antenna and Fiber 
Project through their operational budget over a 4 to 5 year term.

The County’s 1st installment of $50,000 was processed in 
January 2018.



Goff Hill Tower Project



Webber Ave Communcation
Shelter 



FY19 Project Description
Radio Project Continued:

Purchase eight full function dispatch positions, replace select core 
equipment and continue with the connectivity improvements between 
the antenna sites in Lewiston and Auburn.

Estimated Project Cost:

Comm. Center Radio Equipment: $575,000.00

Console Furniture: $125,000.00

Microwave Connectivity: $167,000.00

Comm. Shelter: $130,000.00

Radio System RFP: $25,000.00

Proposed Budget Total: $1,022,000.00



FY19 Project Description

LA911 Server Project
◦ The Committee is requesting $170,000  for the 2nd year of 

the server replacement project. 



FY20 Project Description

FY20: Update and purchase new radio equipment for all Public Safety 
Agencies.

Estimated Cost: 

Main Radio Project: $4,000,000.00

Note: City Managers have determined the Mobile and Portable Radio 
Cost will be assumed by each City given the varying inventories of each 
Public Safety Department.

Auburn Mobile and Portable Radios: $850,000.00

Lewiston Mobile and Portable Radios: $1,100,000.00

Total Project Cost: $6,000,000.00



Lewiston-Auburn 9-1-1 
Emergency Communications System 

Paul M. LeClair, Director 
552 Minot Avenue, Auburn, Maine 04210 

207.786.5380 ~~ 207.795.0743 fax 
 

 
 
May 9, 2018 
 
Edward A. Barrett 
City Administrator  
City of Lewiston 
 
Peter Crichton 
City Manager 
City of Auburn 
 
Re: Radio System Sub Committee Meeting / May 2, 2018 
 
As a follow-up to the 911 radio upgrade discussion at the Joint Council meeting of February 
2018, City Manager Peter Crichton suggested that the mayors, managers and assistants, 
councilors serving on the 911 Committee, Finance Directors, and the Chiefs of the public safety 
departments meet to further explore and discuss the upgrade project.  
 
In attendance: Mayor Jason Levesque, Mayor Shane Bouchard, Councilor Leroy Walker, 
Councilor Michel Lajoie, City Administrator Edward Barrett, City Manager Peter Crichton, 
Finance Director Heather Hunter, Finance Director Jill Eastman, Fire Chief Robert Chase, Fire 
Chief Brian Stockdale, Police Chief Phil Crowell, Police Chief Brian O’Malley, Asst. Chief 
Bruce McKay, Deputy Chief Jason Moen, Director Paul M. LeClair, IT Director Drew 
McKinley, Operations Manager Tim Hall 
 
The Radio System Sub-Committee met on Wednesday May 2, 2018 @ 2:00 PM to discuss the 
Radio System Capital Project. The Committee reviewed the PowerPoint presentation from the 
Joint City Council Meeting of February 22, 2018 (attached) and the proposed capital project 
schedule for FY18, FY19, & FY20 (attached). 
 
Talking points for the meeting: 
 
Mobile and Portable Radios:  
Director LeClair reviewed the cost breakdown for mobile and portable radios for both the VHF 
and 800Mhz radio systems (breakdown attached). The City Managers have indicated each city 
will be responsible for their individual department’s mobile and portable radio cost.  
 
The Committee discussed grant opportunities for the mobile and portable radios. The Director 
reviewed the current Homeland Security Grant Program that provides annual funding to 
Lewiston and Auburn. The Police and Fire Chiefs oversee the HSG projects and will ensure 



Lewiston-Auburn 9-1-1 
Emergency Communications System 

Paul M. LeClair, Director 
552 Minot Avenue, Auburn, Maine 04210 

207.786.5380 ~~ 207.795.0743 fax 
 

funding for the needed mobile and portable radios for the Hazardous Material Team will be 
included in the grant allocation for FY19 and FY20.  In terms of the funding required for the  
larger radio replacement program, the Mayors will contact our Congressional Delegation and 
request assistance in searching out government funding opportunities.   
 
Radio System Discussion:  
The bulk of the discussion focused on the primary requirements the radio system project is 
intended to fulfill -- improving radio equipment reliability and addressing radio frequency 
deficiencies.  The Committee discussed at length the concept and design of the radio system 
itself and how the systems rely on frequencies to provide public safety responders with the 
necessary communication channels with which to operate.  The primary difference between VHF 
and 800Mhz is the limitation on the number and quality of VHF channels when compared to the 
800Mhz system.  A secondary difference is the greater ability of 800Mhz systems to penetrate 
certain building types.  
 
VHF Frequencies:  
Each of the Lewiston Auburn Public Safety Agencies currently have access to one of four (4) 
primary frequencies, with one primary assigned to each agency.  They each also have one (1) 
backup frequency that is not fully supported by the main radio system.  When using a radio on 
the backup frequency, that radio can only access one of the systems nearest towers. As a result, 
the communication range is limited since the radio signal will not be sent out to the system’s 
various repeaters.  Thus, a user in South Auburn is generally unable to communicate with users 
in North Auburn on the backup frequency.  Essentially, this frequency operates in the same way 
as walkie-talkies – individual radio to individual radio within a limited geographical area.   
 
While these so-called “tactical” channels are intended to be used to deal with particular situations 
such as communications at a fire scene or a significant police incident such as a hostage 
situation, they are unfortunately of limited quality since they are not fully integrated into the 
overall radio system and are subject to interference and “talk over” from others using the same or 
nearby frequencies since they are not as fully buffered as the primaries.  As a result, they are 
frequently unavailable or unreliable, forcing all traffic onto the assigned primary frequency.   
 
For major emergencies, it is not unusual for an agency to restrict all radio traffic on a primary 
channel to those responding to the emergency, effectively shutting down that channel for routine 
or normal operations.  While this issue could be addressed through integrating additional 
frequencies into the core radio system, additional VHF radio frequencies are not readily available 
to the LA Agencies and, if they were, there would also be an additional cost associated with 
integrating them into the system since each frequency requires its own main radio equipment. 
VHF is a heavily used radio spectrum and obtaining additional frequencies with good quality and 
range is not an option. 
 
 



Lewiston-Auburn 9-1-1 
Emergency Communications System 

Paul M. LeClair, Director 
552 Minot Avenue, Auburn, Maine 04210 

207.786.5380 ~~ 207.795.0743 fax 
 

800Mhx: 
The design of an 800Mzh radio system efficiently manages a frequency spectrum by removing 
the limits on individual frequencies. An 800Mhz system provides the Police, Fire, and LA911 
Agencies with multiple talk group channels without the equipment limits associated with VHF.  
With such a system, the Police and Fire Chiefs can separate emergency and non-emergency radio 
communications as opposed to the current situation where all emergency and non-emergency 
radio communications occur on one frequency.  
 
Maintaining emergency channel integrity will improve incident scene safety and provide secure 
radio channels for sensitive operations. Best practices recommend Police and Fire Chiefs use a 
designated radio channel for critical incident scene operations. 
 
The primary purpose of an 800Mhz system, recognizing the VHF frequency limits we face in our 
region, is efficiency; many people can carry on many conversations over only a few distinct 
frequencies.  
 
Financial Issues: 
The major concern/issue with moving to the 800Mhz system is cost.  In general, the costs for the 
system run about twice that for a replacement VHF system.  Moving to 800Mhz will require that 
all portable and mobile radios be replaced at the same time, speeding what would normally be an 
on-going four to five year replacement cycle, and will require a higher annual maintenance and 
licensing fee.  Cost is clearly a significant issue, particularly among elected officials and city 
management, where competing priorities must be evaluated for limited capital and operating 
funds and concerns exist regarding relatively high tax rates and their effect on economic 
development and resident ability to pay.   
 
To some extent, however, comparing costs between the two systems is like comparing apples to 
oranges.  A VHF system that would provide a similar number of frequencies or channels would 
be significantly more expensive than the cost estimates for simply replacing the current system. 
 
Summary: 
There was significant support among the public safety staff at the meeting for the 800 system 
given its ability to provide a multi-channel/frequency environment as well as its enhanced 
building penetrating capability.  While the VHF system might be a workable alternative if 
additional frequencies were available, their lack is a significant shortcoming.  At the same time, 
some elected and management officials continue to struggle with the higher costs associated with 
such a system, concerns that all present understand. 
 
The radio project is being phased in over a three year period (FY18 – FY19 – FY20) to allow for 
adequate planning and implementation.  To further address cost concerns, the group explored 
alternative potential sources of funding including federal grants and state support through the 
emergency 911 telephone surcharge fund.  The Mayors agreed to pursue this with state and 



Lewiston-Auburn 9-1-1 
Emergency Communications System 

Paul M. LeClair, Director 
552 Minot Avenue, Auburn, Maine 04210 

207.786.5380 ~~ 207.795.0743 fax 
 

federal officials.  In addition, Chief Crowell indicated a willingness to further investigate an 
upcoming federal grant program for body worn cameras that might be a potential funding source 
through using the system to transmit video. 
 
In general, the majority of those present would favor the 800Mhz radio option given the system’s 
ability to deliver quality radio communications and multiple radio channels to meet the needs of 
the Lewiston Auburn Public Safety Agencies. 
 
Next Steps 
The City of Lewiston will be voting on May 15th on its’ capital bonding.  The proposal includes 
funding for dispatch console replacement.  The City of Auburn Budget review process will occur 
during the month of May and the LA911 Operational and Capital Budget will be presented to the 
Auburn Council on May 21st. While consoles can be purchased now for use with either system 
later, there may be some additional costs associated with matching the consoles to the system.  
Knowing whether we will stay with VHF or move to 800 at the time of console replacement may 
result in some overall project savings. 
 
Should Lewiston approve the console replacement borrowing, the Lewiston Council will be 
asked to vote on a Resolve indicating its support for either the 800 or VHF systems. 
 
 
 
 
Director Paul M. LeClair 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop Meeting Date:   June 4, 2018   
 
Author:  Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 
 

Subject:  Marijuana Moratorium 
 
 
Information:  The marijuana workgroup has been meeting regularly since the City Council meeting on February 5, 2018 
to consider local impacts relating to adult use marijuana to include medical marijuana retail.  The workgroup will have a 
report to present to the council at a future meeting.   
 
At the request of City Councilor Andy Titus, this workshop is being held to determine the action that the City Council will 
need to take regarding retail and medical retail “storefront” operations.  As such, the committee recommends that a 
moratorium ordinance be enacted to allow the Legislature and involved state agencies to finalize the statutory and rule 
amendments.  Currently, the City of Auburn Code of Ordinance is insufficient to prevent serious public harm that could 
be caused by the unregulated development of retail marijuana establishments and other uses authorized by the 
“Marijuana Legalization Act” approved at the November 8, 2016 referendum election, thereby necessitating a 
moratorium to provide an opportunity for the city to amend its code of ordinances to mitigate the potential impact and 
harm on the city and its residents.   
 
While the “Marijuana Legalization Act” has been approved, the rulemaking has yet to be completed.  In addition, the city 
has had four (4) medical retail storefronts begin unregulated operations.  In addition, Police and Code Enforcement have 
received several inquiries regarding retail and medical retail operations.   

 
City Budgetary Impacts:   A moratorium would have no direct budgetary impacts. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  To adopt a marijuana moratorium for retail and medical retail “storefront” operations 
beginning June 18, 2018 and shall remain in effect until December 17, 2018.   

 
Previous Meetings and History:  December 5, 2016, January 23, 2017, February 5, 2018.   

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    
 

Attachments:  
 
 



 

 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Meeting Date:    June 4, 2018  Order:    
 
Author:  Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 
 

Subject:  Transfer of Forfeiture Assets – Scott Ferland 
 

Information:   

In February 2018, Auburn Police participated in a multi-agency Federal investigation involving drug 

trafficking.  As a result, multiple properties and businesses in Lewiston and Auburn were searched.  

 

An Auburn Police Department Detective learned through his confidential informants that Tyler 

Poland was distributing marijuana.  Following an investigation, Mr. Poland was arrested and charged 

with Distribution of Marijuana.  As the investigation continued, it was determined that Mr. Poland 

was transferring large sums of money to an account owned by Almighty Waste ie:  Scott Ferland.  

Mr. Ferland was not charged. 

 

The U.S. Department of the Treasury will provide 5% of the $220,000 seized to the Auburn Police 

Department - $11,000.   These funds will be used to purchase equipment.   

 
  

City Budgetary Impacts: The U.S. Department of the Treasury seeks to transfer $11,000.00 (5% of $220,000) 
U.S. Currency to the Auburn Police Department.  These funds will be used to purchase equipment. 

 
Staff Recommended Action:  Vote to accept the transfer of $11,000. From the U.S. Department of the 
Treasury. 
 
Previous Meetings and History: None 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    
 

 
Attachments:  

• Memo to City Manager  
 



Auburn Police Department 
Phillip L. Crowell, Jr.  |  Chief of Police 

Jason D. Moen  |  Deputy Chief of Police 
www.AuburnPD.com  |  207.333.6650 

60 Court Street  | Auburn, Maine 04210 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:   June 4, 2018 
 

To:   Peter Crichton, City Manager 
 

From:   Phillip L. Crowell, Jr., Chief of Police 

 

 

 

RE:  FORFEITURE ASSETS – SCOTT FERLAND 

 

In February 2018, Auburn Police participated in a multi-agency Federal investigation involving drug 

trafficking.  As a result, multiple properties and businesses in Lewiston and Auburn were searched.  

An Auburn Police Department Detective learned through his confidential informants that Tyler Poland was 

distributing marijuana.  Following an investigation, Mr. Poland was arrested and charged with Distribution of 

Marijuana.  As the investigation continued, it was determined that Mr. Poland was transferring large sums of 

money to an account owned by Almighty Waste ie:  Scott Ferland.  Mr. Ferland was not charged. 

The U.S. Department of the Treasury will provide 5% of the $220,000 seized to the Auburn Police Department 

- $11,000.   These funds will be used to purchase equipment.   

 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 49-06042018 
 

Accepting the transfer of $11,000.  (5% of $220,000) in forfeiture assets in Rem in U.S. Currency 
to the Auburn Police Department (U.S. Department of Treasury Seizure 04180002-01 – Scott 
Ferland). 

 









 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    June 4, 2018 
 
Author:  Sue Clements-Dallaire, City Clerk 
 
Subject:  Mass Gathering Application – Liberty Festival 
 
Information:   
The organizers of the Liberty Festival have applied for their Mass Gathering Permit. City Ordinance states the following: 
 
Sec. 14-252. - Clerk's notification to council.  
As soon as the city clerk or designee receives an application to hold a mass gathering, the clerk shall give public notice by 
notifying the city council. Such notification shall appear as a formal communication on the agenda of the next regularly 
scheduled council meeting.  
 
A Mass Outdoor Gathering is defined by ordinance as any gathering held outdoors with the intent to attract the 
continued attendance of 1,000 or more persons for two or more hours. 
 
The public hearing and vote will occur at the June 18, 2018 City Council meeting.   

 

City Budgetary Impacts: $10,000 (under the Recreation Department under Community Programs) 
 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Acknowledge communication 
 

 
Previous Meetings and History: This is a yearly event that has taken place in the Auburn/Lewiston communities for over 
20 years. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    
 

Attachments:  
 
Application 
Map 
 













Sec. 14-252. - Clerk's notification to council.  

As soon as the city clerk or designee receives an application to hold a mass gathering, the clerk shall 
give public notice by notifying the city council. Such notification shall appear as a formal communication 
on the agenda of the next regularly scheduled council meeting.  

(Ord. No. 38-02072011-05, att. § 24-200, 2-7-2011)  



 

  
 
 

City of Auburn 

City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Workshop Date:  6-4-2018               
 
Author:  Zach Mosher, City Planner 
 
Subject:  Future Land Use and Zoning Map Amendments at 33 Dunn St.  

 
Information:  Clarice and Jeff Hinckley, owners of 33 Dunn St (PID #:  221-195), the site of the former Twin City Times, 
requested to have the zoning changed at this property from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) to Neighborhood Business (NB). 
They are interested in providing office space on the bottom floor and a coffee and doughnut/muffin shop on the top floor. 
The Assessing Department classifies the property as “personal/professional services” and therefore the office use, 
although not permitted in the MFU district, is grandfathered and allowed to continue at this location, but any kind of 
retail, including food retail is not allowed in the MFU district. The zone change proposal from MFU to NB would allow a 
neighborhood scale commercial use.  
 
At the request of the property owners, the Planning Board initiated a Zoning Map Amendment at their February 13, 
2018 meeting. The zone change was then presented to the Planning Board at a public hearing on March 27, 2018.  The 
Staff recommended that the Planning Board consider both an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use 
Plan for both 33 Dunn St from New Auburn Village Center (NAVC) to Neighborhood Business (NB) and a Zoning Map 
Amendment from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) zoning to Neighborhood Business (NB) zoning.  The Staff felt the Zoning 
Map Amendment would be better supported by changing the Future Land Use designation to one that would be in 
compliance with the Comprehensive Plan.  One resident spoke during the public hearing and voiced concern over the 
other uses the Neighborhood Business district might allow as this specific use and owners will not be present forever. 
Any kind of commercial (retail, service, or office) use in the NB district would either need a signoff from the Planning 
Director or special exception approval by the Planning Board.  
 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the City Council move to 1st reading and Public Hearing.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: On February 13, 2018 staff asked the Planning Board to initiate a zone change. A public 
hearing was held at the March 27, 2018 meeting and the Planning Board voted 7-0 to forward a positive 
recommendation to the City Council. All Planning Board materials and maps are attached. Presented to Council at the 
5/21/2018 Council Workshop. 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:       
 
Attachments:  

1. Planning Board report to the City Council.  
2. Staff Report for the Planning Board’s March 27, 2018 meeting with map and attachments. 

 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic & Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING BOARD REPORT to the CITY COUNCIL 

 

To: Mayor Levesque and Honorable Members of the Auburn City Council 

 

From: Zach Mosher, City Planner  

  

Re: Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Plan Zoning Map Amendment – 33 Dunn 

Street 

 

Date: May 7, 2018 

 

 

SUMMARY – On March 27, 2018 the Auburn Planning Board held a public hearing and took 

action on a Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Plan Amendment and a Zoning Map 

Amendment for 33 Dunn St. The meeting consisted of a staff presentation and comments from 

an area resident residing at 59 Fourth street during the public hearing. After a discussion, the 

Planning Board voted unanimously 7-0 to send recommendations of APPROVAL for both 

amendments on to the City Council for final action. 

 

PROPOSAL - Based on a request by staff the Planning Board initiated a Zoning Map Amendment 

(zone change) at its February 13, 2018 meeting for the Planning Board to amend the zoning at 

33 Dunn St from its current zoning of Multi-Family Urban (MFU) to Neighborhood Business 

(NB). The party who has purchased the property is interested in providing office space on the 

bottom floor and a coffee and doughnut/muffin shop on the top floor. Our assessing office 

classifies the property as “personal/professional services with an office style building” and 

therefore the office use, although not permitted in the MFU district, is allowed to continue at 

this location, but any kind of retail, including food retail is not allowed in the MFU district. The 

owner is requesting to have the zoning changed to Neighborhood Business to allow a 

neighborhood scale commercial use which could be a desirable amenity in this part of New 

Auburn. 

 

The 2010 Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Plan recommends New Auburn Village Center 

(NAVC) for the general area including 33 Dunn St. The Staff recommended that the Planning 

Board first amend the 2010 Comprehensive Plan's Future Land Use map for 33 Dunn St from 

New Auburn Village Center (NAVC) to Neighborhood Business (NB) prior to considering the 



Page 2 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 

proposed zone change. The second step would be a Zoning Map Amendment for 33 Dunn St 

from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) to Neighborhood Business (NB). 

 

THE SITE – The property is approximately .23 ac. (10,000 s.f.) in size and is the site of the former 

Twin City Times newspaper.  The structure was permitted and constructed around 1965 as a 

credit union and later occupied by Twin City Times and contains approx. 12 parking spaces at 

the rear of the building. There are two floors in the building with the bottom floor being a 

“walk-out.” The whole building is approx. 3,400 s.f. in size, but only approx. 600 s.f. would be 

devoted to food retail under the owner’s specific proposal.  

 

At the February 13, 2018 Planning Board meeting, staff conducted a short presentation asking 

the Planning Board to initiate the zone change. Staff provided the following reasons as to why 

considering a zone change made sense at this property: 

 

1. The property is across the street from a Neighborhood Business zoned property with a 

similar history of commercial use.   

2. The structure was permitted and constructed around 1965 as a credit union and later 

occupied by Twin City Times.  

3. The structure is not well suited for conversion to a residential use.   

4. A small retail store, café or bakery could be a desirable amenity in the neighborhood.   

 

Final action was taken the Planning Board on March 27, 2018 when the board voted 

unanimously to forward a recommendation of approval to the City Council.  

 

PLANNING BOARD ACTION - The Planning Board was asked to make two recommendations to 

the City Council: (1) amend the Future Land Use Map for 33 Dunn St from New Auburn Village 

Center (NAVC) to Neighborhood Business (NB) and 2) for a Zoning Map Amendment for 33 Dunn 

St from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) zone to Neighborhood Business (NB) zone. 

 

1. The March 27th Staff Report presented references from the 2010 Comprehensive 

Plan relating to Neighborhood Business, which were incorporated into the findings 

for recommending approval to amend the Future Land Use for 33 Dunn St Street 

from the New Auburn Village Center designation to Neighborhood Business. (See 

Attachment 2, Section Ill, A, pages 3 and 4) 

 

The second part of Planning Board consideration was for a zoning map amendment from Multi-

Family Urban (MFU) to Neighborhood Business (NB). The Staff suggested that if the Planning 

Board/City Council amended the Future Land Use for 33 Dunn St from New Auburn Village Center 

(NAVC) to Neighborhood Business (NB), that change would make the Zoning Map Amendment 

request for said property to Neighborhood Business in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan's 

Future Land Use Plan. The staff also presented findings that the zone change request was 

reasonable would allow small-scale general commercial uses (retail, service, and office) that do 

not negatively affect the character of the surrounding neighborhood. It would also allow the 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office of Economic & Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 

proposed continuance of the office use to become a conforming use, in addition to allowing small 

scale retail and service uses.     

 

IV. PLANNING BOARD PUBLIC HEARING, DELIBERATION AND RECOMMENDATIONS- During 

the public hearing portion of the item at the March 27, 2018 meeting, Kevin Lynch, a resident of 

59 Fourth St expressed concern about the use regulations in the Neighborhood Business district 

as this property will at some point change hands and doesn’t want the character of the 

neighborhood to change by allowing a wide range of commercial uses. Board member Scogin 

responded by listing the use regulations of Neighborhood Business district and by reading Use 

Regulation 5 which reads:  
 

Commercial uses (offices, retail and services) in the Neighborhood Business (NB) district are a 

permitted use and must be authorized by the planning director while meeting the following two 

criteria:  

a. The external activity levels and impacts are limited as to be compatible with and 

not adversely affect the character of the surrounding neighborhood.  

b. The proposed use will not create excessive noise, excessive traffic, nuisances 

(vibration, smoke, odor, appearance, etc.), fire hazard and other negative impacts of 

business activities being conducted in the residential neighborhood.  

 

The resident was happy with the answer and said that he lauds the owners of 33 Dunn St for trying 

to accommodate a small retail use at this location. The public hearing was then closed. 

 

A motion was made to forward a recommendation of Approval to the City Council to amend the 

Future Land Plan for 33 Dunn St from New Auburn Village Center (NAVC) to Neighborhood 

Business (NB) and to amend the Zoning Map for said property from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) to 

Neighborhood Business (NB) with the following findings on the Future Land Use Amendment: 

 

1. Amending the Future Land Use Plan from New Auburn Village Center (NAVC) to 

Neighborhood Business (NB) for 33 Dunn St will meet the goal of the Comprehensive 

Plan by “support(ing) the retention and improvement of these businesses since they offer a 

valuable service to the City’s residents” and “The standards also allow for replacing an 

existing use with a new non-residential use as long as it is appropriate for the 

neighborhood.” 



Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 

2. The proposed uses at 33 Dunn St meets the Objectives, Allowed Uses and Development 

Standards for Neighborhood Business (NB) as stated in the 2010 Comprehensive Plan 

(Chapter 2 Future Land Use Plan). 

3. Amending the Future Land Use Plan from New Auburn Village Center (NAVC) to 

Neighborhood Business (NB) for 33 Dunn St will create a future land use designation for 

the Comprehensive Plan and be compatible and in compliance for the proposed zoning 

map amendment, which if approved, would allow the proposed uses of office and retail.  

4. The proposed use of 33 Dunn St will be compatible and appropriate for the surrounding 

neighborhood. 

 

The findings continued for the Planning Board to send a recommendation of APPROVAL to the 

City Council for the Zoning Map Amendment for 33 Dunn St from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) to 

Neighborhood Business (NB) with the following findings: 

1. The Zoning Map Amendment for 33 Dunn St from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) to 

Neighborhood Business (NB) will be in compliance with the Future Land Use Plan’s 

designation as Neighborhood Business. (Subject to City Council approval of the Future 

Land Use Amendment) 

2. Amending the Zoning Map for 33 Dunn St from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) to 

Neighborhood Business (NB) will allow a small-scale office and retail location to exist in a 

walkable neighborhood. 

3. Changing 33 Dunn St to Neighborhood Business (NB) will meet the Neighborhood 

Business district goal of the 2010 Comprehensive Plan by “support(ing) the retention and 

improvement of these businesses since they offer a valuable service to the City’s residents.”   

 

The motion was approved with a unanimous vote of 7-0 (motion by Scogin, seconded by 

Hamlyn).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office Economic and Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 8 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING BOARD STAFF REPORT 
 
To: Auburn Planning Board 
 
From:  Zach Mosher, City Planner 
 
Re: Future Land Use Map and Zoning Map Amendment for 33 Dunn St 
 
Date: March 27, 2018 
 
 

I. PROPOSAL – The Auburn Planning Board initiated a Zoning Map Amendment (zone 
change) at their February 13, 2018 meeting for the property located at 33 Dunn St (PID 
# 221-195).  This property was occupied by the Twin City Times as recently as January 
2018 and is currently zoned Multi-Family Urban (MFU) and is being proposed to be 
rezoned to Neighborhood Business (NB).  At this meeting, the Planning Board is being 
asked to make a two-step recommendation to the City Council: 

1) Amend the Future Land Use Map and 2) Amend the Zoning Map. 
 

Existing Future Land Use Map: 

New Auburn Village Center  

New Auburn Enterprise High Density 

Neighborhood 

Conservation 

33 Dunn St 



Proposed Future Land Use Map: 

 
Existing Zoning:  

Multi-Family Urban  

General Business 

 

33 Dunn St 

Neighborhood 

Business 

Neighborhood 

Business 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office Economic and Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 8 

 

 

 

Proposed Zoning:  

 

BACKGROUND and STAFF COMMENTS – The party who has purchased the property is 
interested in providing office space on the bottom floor and a coffee and 
doughnut/muffin shop on the top floor. They are proposing offices on the 1st floor in 
addition to a small retail coffee/doughnut shop on the top floor. Our assessing office 
classifies the property as “personal/professional services with an office style building” 
and therefore the office use, although not permitted in the MFU district, is allowed to 
continue at this location, but any kind of retail, including food retail is not allowed in the 
MFU district. The owner is requesting to have the zoning changed to Neighborhood 
Business to allow a neighborhood scale commercial use which could be a desirable 
amenity in this part of New Auburn.  

THE SITE – The property is approximately .23 ac. (10,000 s.f.) in size and is the site of 
the former Twin City Times newspaper.  The structure was permitted and constructed 

Neighborhood 

Business 

Neighborhood 

Business 



around 1965 as a credit union and later occupied by Twin City Times and contains 
approx. 12 parking spaces at the rear of the building. There are two floors in the 
building with the bottom floor being a “walk-out.” Each floor is approx. 1,450 sq ft in 

size.  

At the February 13, 2018 Planning Board meeting, staff conducted a short presentation 
asking the Planning Board to initiate the zone change. Staff provided the following 
reasons as to why considering a zone change made sense at this property: 

1. The property is across the street from a Neighborhood Business zoned property 
with a similar history of commercial use.   

2. The structure was permitted and constructed around 1965 as a credit union and 
later occupied by Twin City Times.  

3. The structure is not well suited for conversion to a residential use.   
4. A small retail store, café or bakery could be a desirable amenity in the 

neighborhood.   
 
After review, the Planning Board voted to initiate a zone change at this location and 
staff is now requesting the Planning Board vote to make a recommendation to the City 
Council on amending both the Future Land Use map and the Zoning Map.  
 

II. DEPARTMENT REVIEW - The proposed zoned change was reviewed at the October 18, 
2017 Plan Review Committee. 
 

a. Police - No Comments 
b. Auburn Water and Sewer - No Comments 
c. Fire Department - No Comments 
d. Engineering – No Comments 
e. Public Services – No Comments 
f. Economic and Community Development – Staff presented the zone change 

request to the Plan Review Committee. 
 

III. PLANNING BOARD ACTION- The Planning Board is being asked to make a two-step 
recommendation to the City Council: 
 

1) Amend the Future Land Use Map 
2) Amend the Zoning Map 
 

The Planning Board is being asked to amend the Future Land Use for 33 Dunn St from 
New Auburn Village Center (NAVC) District to Neighborhood Business (NB), and for a 
Zoning Map Amendment for 33 Dunn Street from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) district to 
Neighborhood Business (NB) district. 
 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office Economic and Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 8 

 

 

 

A. FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT-   
The 2010 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map for the 33 Dunn St property is 
New Auburn Village Center.  This designation is appropriate for the general area. 
 
The 2010 Comprehensive Plan speaks to Neighborhood Business as follows:  

 
(From Goals, Policies and Strategies, Chapter 1) 
 
4. Neighborhood Business Districts    
The City has a number of neighborhood businesses that are located within residential 
neighborhoods.  It is the City’s policy to support the retention and improvement of 
these businesses since they offer a valuable service to the City’s residents.  It is 
also the City’s policy to encourage the owners of these properties to reinvest in 
maintaining and improving these buildings.  To accomplish these objectives, the 
Future Land Use Plan (see Chapter 2) designates these properties as Neighborhood 
Business Districts.  The standards for these districts allow the existing nonresidential 
use to be maintained and improved, as long as it is compatible with the surrounding 
neighborhood.  The standards also allow for replacing an existing use with a new 
nonresidential use (other than service stations and auto service facilities), as long as it 
is appropriate for the neighborhood.  The primary objective in creating these 
districts is to encourage the retention of these neighborhood businesses.  As long 
as the property includes nonresidential space, whether occupied or not, the property 
should remain in the Neighborhood Business District to allow re-occupancy by an 
appropriate nonresidential use.  However, if a property is converted to a residential 
use, it is the City’s policy that the City should rezone the property to eliminate the 
Neighborhood Business District.  (pages 71 and 72, 2010 Comprehensive Plan- Chapter 
1: Goals, Policies and Strategies) 

 
(From Future Land Use Plan, Chapter 2) 
Neighborhood Business District (NB)  
Objective – The objective of the Neighborhood Business District is to allow for the 
maintenance, improvement, and continued commercial use of properties within 
residential neighborhoods that have been traditionally used for nonresidential 
purposes, provided that they are good neighbors, and that changes in the property or 
the use do not increase the adverse impacts on the neighborhood (see Figure 2.3).  
Properties that are zoned Neighborhood Business should continue to be zoned for 
commercial use as long as they continue to be used for appropriate nonresidential 



purposes.  If the property is converted to a residential use, it should be rezoned to 
remove it from the neighborhood business district. 
 
Allowed Uses – The following types of uses should be allowed in the Neighborhood 
Business District provided they do not result in an increase in the adverse impacts on 
the surrounding neighborhood: 
 
• residential uses of the type allowed in the surrounding neighborhood 
• personal services 
• small retail uses 
• existing service stations and auto service facilities 
• community services and government uses 

 
Development Standards – The development standards should reflect the existing 
pattern of development with respect to setbacks.  The standards should allow for the 
expansion of the building as long as the overall layout and functioning of the site is 
improved, and there is no increase in adverse impacts. (pages 105 and 106; 2010 
Comprehensive Plan- Future Land Use Plan Chapter 2) 
 
STAFF COMMENTS- It is clear that the 2010 Comprehensive Plan’s Goals and Future 
Land Use Plan supports preserving and maintaining neighborhood businesses.  As 
the site of a credit union for 40 years and then the location of the Twin City Times 
this property has provided a valuable service to the neighborhood over the years. 
With the  plan being to continue the office use while also offering small scale food 
retail, it is the owner’s desire to continue a valuable service to the neighborhood.  
Amending 33 Dunn St from New Auburn Village Center (NAVC) to Neighborhood 
Business (NB) meets the goals and intent of the 2010 Comprehensive Plan for 
Neighborhood Business and will allow the associated Zoning Map Amendment to be 
approved by being in agreement with the Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map.   
 
B. ZONING MAP AMENDMENT- The proposed Zoning Map Amendment for 33 Dunn 
St from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) to Neighborhood Business (NB) is supported by 
the 2010 Comprehensive Plan’s Goals, Policies and Strategies and Land Use Plan as 
referenced previously.  Should the Future Land Use Plan be amended for 33 Dunn St 
to Neighborhood Business, the proposed zone change for 33 Dunn St to 
Neighborhood Business would then be in agreement with the Future Land Use Plan.  
The proposed zone change would allow general commercial uses (retail, service, 
and office) that do not negatively affect the character of the surrounding 
neighborhood. It would also allow the office use to become a conforming use, in 
addition to allowing small scale retail and service uses.     
 



City of Auburn, Maine 

Office Economic and Community Development 

 www.auburnmaine.gov  |  60 Court Street  

 Auburn, Maine 04210  

 207.333.6601 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 8 

 

 

 

STAFF COMMENTS- Amending the Future Land Use for 33 Dunn Street to from New 
Auburn Village Center (NAVC) to Neighborhood Business (NB) will make the Zoning 
Map Amendment request for 33 Dunn St to Neighborhood Business compatible and 
in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Plan.  The zone 
change request will allow the office use to become conforming as well as allowing 
general commercial, retail, and service uses without being detrimental to the 
surrounding area.   

 
 

IV. STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS-   
 
A FUTURE LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT-   
The Staff recommends the Planning Board send a recommendation of APPROVAL to 
the City Council to amend the Future Land Plan for 33 Dunn St from New Auburn 
Village Center (NAVC) to Neighborhood Business (NB) with the following findings: 

1. Amending the Future Land Use Plan from New Auburn Village Center (NAVC) to 
Neighborhood Business (NB) for 33 Dunn St will meet the goal of the 
Comprehensive Plan by “support(ing) the retention and improvement of these 
businesses since they offer a valuable service to the City’s residents” and “The 
standards also allow for replacing an existing use with a new non-residential use as 
long as it is appropriate for the neighborhood.” 

2. The proposed uses at 33 Dunn St meets the Objectives, Allowed Uses and 
Development Standards for Neighborhood Business (NB) as stated in the 2010 
Comprehensive Plan (Chapter 2 Future Land Use Plan). 

3. Amending the Future Land Use Plan from New Auburn Village Center (NAVC) to 
Neighborhood Business (NB) for 33 Dunn St will create a future land use 
designation for the Comprehensive Plan and be compatible and in compliance 
for the proposed zoning map amendment, which if approved, would allow the 
proposed uses of office and retail.  

4. The proposed use of 33 Dunn St will be compatible and appropriate for the 
surrounding neighborhood. 

 
B. ZONING MAP AMENDMENT- 
The Staff recommends the Planning Board send a recommendation of APPROVAL to 
the City Council for the Zoning Map Amendment for 33 Dunn St from Multi-Family 
Urban (MFU) to Neighborhood Business (NB) with the following findings: 

1. The Zoning Map Amendment for 33 Dunn St from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) to 
Neighborhood Business (NB) will be in compliance with the Future Land Use 



Plan’s designation as Neighborhood Business. (Subject to City Council approval 
of the Future Land Use Amendment) 

2. Amending the Zoning Map for 33 Dunn St from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) to 
Neighborhood Business (NB) will allow a small-scale office and retail location to 
exist in a walkable neighborhood. 

3. Changing 33 Dunn St to Neighborhood Business (NB) will meet the 
Neighborhood Business district goal of the 2010 Comprehensive Plan by 
“support(ing) the retention and improvement of these businesses since they offer a 
valuable service to the City’s residents.”  

 
 
 

__________________________ 
Zach Mosher 
City Planner 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 



221-195 HINCKLEY PROPERTIES LLCParcel: Owner1: Sale Date: Account:02/22/2018  4305 

221195000  160,000  1CollectorID: Owner2: Sale Price: Card#:

33  DUNN ST 17 OAK HILL DRIVE 9789-215 0.23 Location: Mailing: Book/Page: Total Land:

GB8Alt Location: Mailing2: Cert Number: Neighbhd:

15 PERS/PROF SV NEW GLOUCESTER ME 221-195-000-000Land Use: City: St: Validity Code: Subdv Par:

04260 CorrectionAssessor Map: Zip: Verified By: Subdv Type:

TWIN CITY PUBLISHING INC  2003 Grantor: Subdv FY:

Parcel Data

Reason: Notes:Result:By:Inspect Date:

10/18/2012 NC: NO CHANGE QTR1: 1-4 Rev 2012 ADD REAR CANOPY

11/06/2008 1-4: 1 - 4 REVIEW

Previous Assessment Information

 173,300  2018  173,300  2017

Residential Exempt:

Prior FY:Assessed:Current FY:In Process:

Prior Res Exempt:

Bedrooms:

Rooms:

Exterior Cond:

Interior Cond:

Overall Cond:

Condo Base Floor:

Condo Pct Interest:

Condo CDU:

Condo Building Number:

Condo Kitchen Type:

Stacks:

Fireplaces:

Extra Kitchens:

Kitchen Qual:

Half Bath Qual:

Half Baths:

Full Bath Qual:

Full Baths:

Percent Air Cond:

Heat Type:

Heat Fuel:

Bsmt Garage Cap:

Year Built:

Grade:

Roof Cover:

Roof Type:

Ext Wall:

Foundation:

Occupancy:

Stories:

Type:

Use Code:

Condo Open Spaces:Condo Covered Spaces:Condo Garage Spaces:Condo Park Type:

Condo Parking

Building Description/Condo Unit Information

Attached Garage Area:

First Floor Area:

Basement Finished:

Basement Area:

Upper Floor Area:

Basement Grade:

Num Elevators:

Image

Auburn, ME
Property Record Card



City of Auburn Comprehensive Plan ‐ 2010  Chapter 2: Future Land Use Plan 

 

Approved 4/19/2011  105 
 

Development Standards – The basic density requirement should be up to 6‐8 units per acre for 
single  family and  two‐family homes and up  to 10‐12 units per acre  for  townhouse  style and 
multifamily  units.    The  reuse/reconfiguration  of  the  space  within  existing  buildings  for 
residential  purposes  should  be  allowed  without  consideration  of  the  density/lot  size 
requirements  provided  that  the  building  will  be  renovated,  be  compatible  with  the 
neighborhood, and meet the City’s requirements for residential units including the provision of 
appropriate parking and green space.  The minimum lot size for single family house lots should 
be 5,000  to 6,500 SF with 50  feet of  lot width or  frontage.   The other development  standards 
should be established to reflect the existing pattern of development. 

Moderate Density Neighborhood Conservation District (MoDNC) 
Objective – Stabilize and promote continued  investment  in the City’s moderate density single 
and  two‐family  neighborhoods  to  assure  that  they  remain  safe,  attractive  areas  in  which 
residents want to live (see Figures 2.3, 2.5, 2.6, and 2.7).   To this end, the district should allow 
property owners to upgrade their properties and for infill development to occur on vacant lots 
as long as it is compatible with the character of the neighborhood. 
 
Allowed Uses – The allowed uses in the Moderate Density Neighborhood Conservation District 
should be limited to the following types of uses: 
 

• single and two‐family homes 
• townhouse style attached single family units 
• home occupations 
• community services and municipal use and facilities 
• agriculture 

 
Development Standards – The basic density requirement should be up to 4‐6 units per acre for 
single family and two‐family homes and up to 6‐8 units per acre for townhouse style units.  The 
minimum lot size for single family house lots should be 7,500 to 10,000 SF, with 75 to 100 feet of 
lot width or frontage.  The other development standards should be similar to the standards for 
existing Urban Residential District.   The development standards should  include provisions  to 
allow infill development on existing lots of record, regardless of their size, if they meet stringent 
design  and  environmental  standards  that  ensure  compatibility  with  the  surrounding 
neighborhood. 

DESIGNATIONS: NONRESIDENTIAL AND MIXED USE  

Neighborhood Business District (NB) 
Objective – The objective of the Neighborhood Business District is to allow for the maintenance, 
improvement,  and  continued  commercial use  of properties within  residential neighborhoods 
that  have  been  traditionally  used  for  nonresidential  purposes,  provided  that  they  are  good 
neighbors, and that changes in the property or the use do not increase the adverse impacts on 



City of Auburn Comprehensive Plan ‐ 2010  Chapter 2: Future Land Use Plan 

 

Approved 4/19/2011  106 
 

the neighborhood  (see Figure 2.3).   Properties  that are zoned Neighborhood Business  should 
continue  to be zoned  for commercial use as  long as  they continue  to be used  for appropriate 
nonresidential purposes.  If the property is converted to a residential use, it should be rezoned 
to remove it from the neighborhood business district. 
 
Allowed Uses – The following types of uses should be allowed  in the Neighborhood Business 
District provided  they do not result  in an  increase  in  the adverse  impacts on  the surrounding 
neighborhood: 
 

• residential uses of the type allowed in the surrounding neighborhood 
• personal services 
• small retail uses 
• existing service stations and auto service facilities 
• community services and government uses 

 
Service stations and auto service facilities existing as of 2009 should continue to be allowed uses 
and  should be  allowed  to modernize, but  the  establishment of  a new  service  station or  auto 
service  facility  in  the  Neighborhood  Business  district  should  not  be  permitted.    Before  an 
existing nonresidential use  is  replaced by  a new nonresidential use,  it  should be  required  to 
demonstrate that it will not increase the adverse impact on the surrounding neighborhood. 
 
Development  Standards  –  The  development  standards  should  reflect  the  existing  pattern  of 
development with  respect  to  setbacks.   The  standards  should  allow  for  the  expansion of  the 
building as  long as  the overall  layout and  functioning of  the site  is  improved, and  there  is no 
increase in adverse impacts. 

Community Use District (CU) 
Objective – The objective of  the Community Use District  is  to  recognize  those areas  that are 
used  for  community  facilities,  including  schools  and  educational  institutions,  parks, 
playgrounds, and  similar public and  community  facilities  (see Figure 2.3).   The  intent of  this 
designation  is  to  establish  a  policy  that  these  types  of  properties  should  be  recognized  as 
important resources, and that any significant change  in use should be considered a significant 
policy decision. 
 
Allowed Uses  –  The  allowed  uses within  the Community Use District  should  be  limited  to 
municipal and governmental facilities, educational facilities, recreational facilities and uses, and 
community services. 
 
Development Standards – The development standards should focus on providing flexibility for 
appropriate  municipal,  community,  and  governmental  uses,  while  reflecting  the  existing 
pattern of development  in adjacent areas, and assuring  that  the use of  the property does not 
result in any undue adverse impact on the surrounding neighborhood. 



DIVISION 11. - NEIGHBORHOOD BUSINESS DISTRICT  

Sec. 60-470. - Purpose.  

This district is intended to provide for the daily convenience shopping and business needs of nearby 
residents and contains those retail, service and office uses which serve primarily a neighborhood 
population. It is intended that this district be located on lots in areas zoned for residential use.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 3.61A) 

Sec. 60-471. - Use regulations.  

(a)  Permitted uses. The following uses are permitted, provided that the business use be limited to the 
ground floor and/or basement and that the gross building area devoted to business use, excluding 
storage, does not exceed 3,000 square feet:  

(1)  Residential dwellings at the same density as permitted in any abutting residential district.  

(2)  Beauty parlors, barbershops and self-service laundries.  

(3)  Public transportation passenger stations.  

(4)  Grocery stores.  

(5)  General commercial uses (retail, service and office uses), not necessarily associated with the 
surrounding neighborhood, may be authorized by the planning director upon written application 
adhering to the following procedure and criteria:  

a.  The external activity levels and impacts are limited as to be compatible with and not 
adversely affect the character of the surrounding neighborhood.  

b.  The proposed use will not create excessive noise, excessive traffic, nuisances (vibration, 
smoke, odor, appearance, etc.), fire hazard and other negative impacts of business 
activities being conducted in the residential neighborhood.  

(b)  Special exception uses. The following uses are permitted as special exceptions after approval by 
the planning board in accordance with division 3 of article XVI of this chapter.  

(1)  Automobile parking lots and garages, commercial and public, provided that they shall be at 
least ten feet from any lot in a residential district and that the setback area be landscaped.  

(2)  Public utility uses, such as electric substations and office, excluding repair facilities and the 
storage of material and trucks.  

(3)  Convenience stores, drug stores, variety stores and retail bakeries shops provided that goods 
baked on the premises shall be sold only on the premises.  

(4)  Automobile filling stations.  

(5)  Halls, private clubs and lodges.  

(6)  Shoe repair shops, pickup laundries and dry cleaners.  

(7)  Adaptive reuse of structures of community significance.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 3.61B; Ord. No. 05-04032017, § 2, 4-24-2017) 

Sec. 60-472. - Dimensional regulations.  

All structures in this district, except as noted, shall be subject to the following dimensional 
regulations:  



(1)  Minimum lot area, width and depth. No minimum shall be applied to buildings in this district.  

(2)  Density. The maximum lot coverage by all building shall be 40 percent.  

(3)  Yard requirements.  

a.  Rear. There shall be behind every principal building a rear yard having a minimum depth of 
35 feet or 25 percent of the average depth of the lot, whichever is less.  

b.  Side. There shall be a distance of five feet between any principal building and the side 
property line, plus the side yard setback shall be increased one foot for every four feet or 
part thereof increase in street frontage over 49 feet to a maximum of 25 feet for side yard 
setback.  

c.  Front. There shall be in front of every principal building a front yard having a minimum 
depth of 25 feet or 25 percent of the average depth of the lot, whichever is less.  

d.  Open and unbuilt spaces. Any yard space or area required to be kept open and unbuilt on 
may be used, if otherwise lawful, for off-street automobile parking, except that a green strip 
not less than ten feet wide shall be maintained open and green, not built on, paved, or 
parked on, all or parked on, all along each property line that abuts land residentially.  

(4)  Height. No permitted structure shall exceed two stories or 35 feet in height. A public building, 
church or temple, or accessory building or structure may have a maximum height of 65 feet 
from grade, provided that the front yard, rear yard and each of the side yards shall be increased 
by one foot for each foot in height in excess of 35 feet.  

(5)  Off-street parking and loading. Provisions for off-street parking shall not be required in the NB 
district, except for dwellings and for any parking and loading area required as a condition of 
special exception approval.  

(Ord. of 9-21-2009, § 3.61C) 

Secs. 60-473—60-497. - Reserved.  



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDER 50-06042018 
  
BE IT ORDERED, that the City Council hereby amends the City of Auburn 2010 Comprehensive 
Plan Future Land Use Map for the property located at 33 Dunn Street (PID # 221-195) from New 
Auburn Village Center (NAVC) to Neighborhood Business (NB). 
 

 



 

  
 
 

City of Auburn 

City Council Information Sheet 

 
 
Council Workshop Date:  6-4-2018               
 
Author:  Zach Mosher, City Planner 
 
Subject:  Future Land Use and Zoning Map Amendments at 33 Dunn St.  

 
Information:  Clarice and Jeff Hinckley, owners of 33 Dunn St (PID #:  221-195), the site of the former Twin City Times, 
requested to have the zoning changed at this property from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) to Neighborhood Business (NB). 
They are interested in providing office space on the bottom floor and a coffee and doughnut/muffin shop on the top floor. 
The Assessing Department classifies the property as “personal/professional services” and therefore the office use, 
although not permitted in the MFU district, is grandfathered and allowed to continue at this location, but any kind of 
retail, including food retail is not allowed in the MFU district. The zone change proposal from MFU to NB would allow a 
neighborhood scale commercial use.  
 
At the request of the property owners, the Planning Board initiated a Zoning Map Amendment at their February 13, 
2018 meeting. The zone change was then presented to the Planning Board at a public hearing on March 27, 2018.  The 
Staff recommended that the Planning Board consider both an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use 
Plan for both 33 Dunn St from New Auburn Village Center (NAVC) to Neighborhood Business (NB) and a Zoning Map 
Amendment from Multi-Family Urban (MFU) zoning to Neighborhood Business (NB) zoning.  The Staff felt the Zoning 
Map Amendment would be better supported by changing the Future Land Use designation to one that would be in 
compliance with the Comprehensive Plan.  One resident spoke during the public hearing and voiced concern over the 
other uses the Neighborhood Business district might allow as this specific use and owners will not be present forever. 
Any kind of commercial (retail, service, or office) use in the NB district would either need a signoff from the Planning 
Director or special exception approval by the Planning Board.  
 
City Budgetary Impacts: None 

 
Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends the City Council move to 1st reading and Public Hearing.  

 
Previous Meetings and History: On February 13, 2018 staff asked the Planning Board to initiate a zone change. A public 
hearing was held at the March 27, 2018 meeting and the Planning Board voted 7-0 to forward a positive 
recommendation to the City Council. All Planning Board materials and maps are attached. Presented to Council at the 
5/21/2018 Council Workshop. 
 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:       
 
Attachments:  

1. Planning Board report to the City Council.  
2. Staff Report for the Planning Board’s March 27, 2018 meeting with map and attachments. 

 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

ORDINANCE 02-06042018 
  
BE IT ORDAINED, that the City Council hereby amends the Auburn Zoning Map from Multi-
Family Urban District to Neighborhood Business District for the property located at 33 Dunn 
Street (PID # 221-195), pursuant to Chapter 60, Article XVII, Division 2 of the Ordinances of the 
City of Auburn. 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    June 4, 2018 
 
Author:  Jill M. Eastman, Finance Director  
 

Subject:  Order – Authorizing Issuance of General Obligation Bonds and Tax Levy Therefor 
 

Information:  This is the order authorizing the sale of $8,600,000 in General Obligation Bonds to finance the FY 
18-19 Capital Improvement Projects. (list attached) 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: There are no budgetary impacts at this time.  
 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends holding a public hearing on the General Obligation Bond Order 
and passage of 1st reading. 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Joint Council and School Committee workshop on 3/26/18, various budget 
workshops through April and May 2018. 
 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    
 

Attachments:  

List of projects 
Bond Order 
Public Hearing Notice 
 



CITYWIDE  
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FY 19 BONDS

Description
Airport Motor Vehicle Fuel Pump  $             80,000 
Airport Runway Reconstruction  $             10,000 
Airport Wildlife Control Equipment  $           150,000 
Econ Dev & Planning New Auburn Village Revitalization  $           206,800 
Econ Dev & Planning Dangerous Building Demolition  $           100,000 
Econ Dev & Planning Comp Plan Property Acquisition  $           100,000 
Econ Dev & Planning Downtown Parking and Walkability  $           100,000 
Facilities Street Light Purchase  $           800,000 
Fire Paving Parking Lots (Central & Center)  $           140,000 
IT Upgrade Operating Systems  $           200,000 
LATC Bus Replacement  $             50,000 
LA911 Virtualization Hardware Refresh  $             85,000 
LA911 Radio Replacement Project  $           403,000 
Museum LA Capital Campaign  $             25,000 
NSB Arena Event Flooring  $           125,000 
Police Vehicle Replacement  $           172,000 
Police Mobile Data Terminal Replacement  $             90,000 

Police Police Station Improvements  $           100,000 
Engineering Reconstruction 900,000$            
Engineering Reclamation/Resurfacing 800,000$            
Engineering Major Drainage 300,000$            
Engineering MDOT Match 750,000$            
Engineering Municipal Beach Study 100,000$            
Engineering Sidewalks 50,000$              
Public Works 7 Yard Plow Trucks 410,000$            
Public Works Warm Storage Building 450,000$            
Public Works One Ton Truck 40,000$              
Public Works Skid Steer 110,000$            
Recreation Security Cameras Pettengill Park 50,000$              
Recreation Senior CC Phase II (Kitchen) 70,000$              
School Department School Department 1,600,000$        
Administration Contingency 33,200$              

8,600,000$        TOTAL CIP



CITYWIDE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FY 19 Unallocated

Description
 Unallocated 

Bond Proceeds 

Economic Development Stratigic Planning  $             50,000 
Electrical Electrical Vehicle Replacement  $             33,000 
Electrical Main Street Underground Electrical  $             22,000 
Police Interview Room Recording Equipment  $             11,500 
Police Conference Room Chair Replacement  $             13,800 
Public Works Traffic Paint Machine  $             15,000 
Public Works Emergency Sign Trailer  $             14,000 
Recreation 16 Passenger Van  $             35,000 
Recreation Senior Center Kitchen  $                5,000 
Recreation Sound System Festival Plaza  $             15,000 
Recreation Tot Lot Improvements  $             15,000 
Recreation Union St Park/Chestnut Park Upgrades  $             12,000 

241,300$           TOTAL CIP



{W3790491.1} 

CITY OF AUBURN  
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 
Pursuant to Section 8.13 of the City Charter, notice is hereby given that the Auburn City Council 
will hold a public hearing on Monday, June 4, 2017, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, Auburn 
Hall, 60 Court Street on a proposed order authorizing the City’s general obligation bonds in the 
amount of $8,500,000 to finance the City’s FY19 Capital Improvement Program. 
 
Following the public hearing, the City Council expects to conduct the second reading and take 
final action on the order at the June 18, 2017 meeting.   
 
The order is available for inspection at the City Clerk’s office during regular business hours. 
 
 
 



CITYWIDE  
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FY 19 BONDS

Description
Airport Motor Vehicle Fuel Pump  $             80,000 
Airport Runway Reconstruction  $             10,000 
Airport Wildlife Control Equipment  $           150,000 
Econ Dev & Planning New Auburn Village Revitalization  $           206,800 
Econ Dev & Planning Dangerous Building Demolition  $           100,000 
Econ Dev & Planning Comp Plan Property Acquisition  $           100,000 
Econ Dev & Planning Downtown Parking and Walkability  $           100,000 
Facilities Street Light Purchase  $           800,000 
Fire Paving Parking Lots (Central & Center)  $           140,000 
IT Upgrade Operating Systems  $           200,000 
LATC Bus Replacement  $             50,000 
LA911 Virtualization Hardware Refresh  $             85,000 
LA911 Radio Replacement Project  $           403,000 
Museum LA Capital Campaign  $             25,000 
NSB Arena Event Flooring  $           125,000 
Police Vehicle Replacement  $           172,000 
Police Mobile Data Terminal Replacement  $             90,000 

Police Police Station Improvements  $           100,000 
Engineering Reconstruction 900,000$            
Engineering Reclamation/Resurfacing 800,000$            
Engineering Major Drainage 300,000$            
Engineering MDOT Match 750,000$            
Engineering Municipal Beach Study 100,000$            
Engineering Sidewalks 50,000$              
Public Works 7 Yard Plow Trucks 410,000$            
Public Works Warm Storage Building 500,000$            
Public Works One Ton Truck 40,000$              
Public Works Skid Steer 110,000$            
Recreation Security Cameras Pettengill Park 25,000$              
Recreation Senior CC Phase II (Kitchen) 45,000$              
School Department School Department 1,600,000$        
Administration Contingency 33,200$              

8,600,000$        TOTAL CIP



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
ORDER 51-06042018 

 

ORDER - AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND A TAX LEVY 

THEREFOR   
  

Be It Ordered by the Auburn City Council, following a public hearing duly called and held as 

required by Article 8, Section 8.13 of the Auburn City Charter, that there be and hereby is 

authorized the issuance and sale of the City’s general obligation bonds and notes in anticipation 

thereof on either a taxable or a tax-exempt basis in the amount of $8,600,000, the proceeds of 

which, including premium, if any, and investment earnings thereon, are hereby appropriated to 

finance the following capital equipment and capital improvements (including costs of issuance 

for the bonds), all constituting part of the City’s FY19 Capital Improvement Program:  

CITYWIDE   

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FY 19 BONDS 

  Description     

Airport Motor Vehicle Fuel Pump   $           80,000  

Airport Runway Reconstruction   $           10,000  

Airport Wildlife Control Equipment   $         150,000  

Econ Dev & Planning New Auburn Village Revitalization   $         206,800  

Econ Dev & Planning Dangerous Building Demolition   $         100,000  

Econ Dev & Planning Comp Plan Property Acquisition   $         100,000  

Econ Dev & Planning Downtown Parking and Walkability   $         100,000  

Facilities Street Light Purchase   $         800,000  

Fire Paving Parking Lots (Central & Center)   $         140,000  

IT Upgrade Operating Systems   $         200,000  

LATC Bus Replacement   $           50,000  

LA911 Virtualization Hardware Refresh   $           85,000  

LA911 Radio Replacement Project   $         403,000  

Museum LA Capital Campaign   $           25,000  

NSB Arena Event Flooring   $         125,000  

Police Vehicle Replacement   $         172,000  

Police Mobile Data Terminal Replacement   $           90,000  

Police Police Station Improvements   $         100,000  

Engineering Reconstruction   $         900,000  

Engineering Reclamation/Resurfacing   $         800,000  

Engineering Major Drainage   $         300,000  



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

Engineering MDOT Match   $         750,000  

Engineering Municipal Beach Study   $         100,000  

Engineering Sidewalks   $           50,000  

Public Works 7 Yard Plow Trucks   $         410,000  

Public Works Warm Storage Building   $         500,000  

Public Works One Ton Truck   $           40,000  

Public Works Skid Steer   $         110,000  

Recreation Security Cameras Pettengill Park   $           25,000  

Recreation Senior CC Phase II (Kitchen)   $           45,000  

School Department School Department   $      1,600,000  

Administration Contingency   $           33,200  

TOTAL CIP  $      8,600,000  

 

 

THAT the bonds and notes authorized hereunder shall be signed by the City’s Finance Director 

and its Treasurer, attested by the City Clerk under the seal of the City.  A tax levy is hereby 

provided for each fiscal year that the bonds authorized hereunder remain outstanding to meet the 

annual installments of principal and interest as may accrue in each respective year.  The bonds 

and notes may be issued at one time or from time to time, either singly or in series, and the 

authority and discretion to fix method of sale, issue date, maturities, denominations, interest rate, 

place of payment, form and other details of said bonds and notes, and to take all other actions 

and to sign and deliver all other documents, certificates and agreements in order to provide for 

the sale thereof is hereby delegated to the City’s Finance Director.  

  

THAT in order to finance temporarily the projects described above, the Finance Director is 

authorized to expend up to $8,600,000 either from available funds of the City or from the 

proceeds of bond anticipation notes which would be reimbursed or refinanced from bond 

proceeds.  

  

THAT the bonds and notes authorized hereunder may be made subject to call for redemption, 

either with or without premium, on such terms as may be determined by the Finance Director.  

  

THAT the authority and discretion to designate the bond or notes authorized hereunder, or a 

portion thereof, as qualified tax-exempt obligations under Section 265 of the Internal Revenue 

Code of 1986, as amended, is hereby delegated to the Finance Director.  

  

THAT the City’s Finance Director, Treasurer, Clerk, and other proper officials of the City be, 

and hereby are, authorized and empowered in its name and on its behalf to do or cause to be done 

all such acts and things, and to execute, deliver, file, approve, and record all financing 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

documents, contracts, agreements, certificates, preliminary and final official statements, tax 

certificates and other documents as may be necessary or advisable, with the advice of counsel for 

the City, to carry out the provisions of this order, as may be necessary or desirable.  

  

THAT if the Finance Director, Treasurer, or Clerk are for any reason unavailable to approve and 

execute the bonds or any related financing documents, the person or persons then acting in any 

such capacity, whether as an assistant, a deputy, or otherwise, is authorized to act for such 

official with the same force and effect as if such official had himself or herself performed such 

act.  

  

THAT the authority to issue the bonds or notes authorized hereunder shall automatically expire 2 

years from the approval of this Order.  

  

THAT this order is a declaration of official intent pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 and shall be 

kept available for public inspection during reasonable business hours at the office of the City 

Clerk.  

  

A Public Notice describing the general purpose of the borrowing and the terms thereof was 

published on or before May 21, 2018, in the Lewiston Sun-Journal, a daily newspaper published 

in the City of Auburn and in Androscoggin County.    

  

A public hearing was held on June 4, 2017.    

 

 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    June 4, 2018 
 
Author:  Jill M. Eastman, Finance Director  
 

Subject:  Order – Reallocating Unspent Proceeds from the City’s General Obligation Bonds. 
 

Information:  This is the order authorizing the reallocation of $241,300 from previous General Obligation Bonds 
that were unspent to fund a portion of the City’s FY 18-19 CIP. (list attached) 
 

 
City Budgetary Impacts: There are no budgetary impacts at this time.  
 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends holding a public hearing on the Reallocation Order and passage 
of 1st reading, the second reading will be scheduled June 18, 2018. 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Joint Council and School Committee workshop on 3/26/18, various budget 
workshops through April and May 2018. 
 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    
 

Attachments:  

List of projects 
Bond Order 
Public Hearing Notice 
 



{W4718360.1} {W4718360.1} {W4718360.1}

 {W4319800.1} 

CITY OF AUBURN  
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 
Pursuant to Section 8.13 of the City Charter, notice is hereby given that the Auburn City Council 
will hold a public hearing on Monday, June 4, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers, Auburn 
Hall, 60 Court Street on a proposed order reallocating $266,300 of unspent proceeds from various 
General Obligation Bonds to finance a portion of the City’s FY 19 Capital Improvements.  
 
The City Council expects to conduct the first reading and public hearing on the order at the June 
4, 2018 meeting and second reading and final action at the meeting of June 18, 2018.   
 
The order is available for inspection at the City Clerk’s office during regular business hours. 
 
 
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
ORDER 52-06042018 

 

ORDER - Reallocating Unspent Proceeds from the City's General Obligation Bonds 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Auburn issued General Obligation Bonds in various amounts for various projects; 
and 

 

WHEREAS, there remain unspent proceeds of the Bonds borrowed for multiple capital improvements, 
$241,300 of which excess proceeds the City Council desires to reappropriate and reallocate to be used 
for the projects listed below; 

CITYWIDE  

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN FY 19 Unallocated 

  Description   
 Unallocated 

Bond Proceeds  

Economic Development Strategic Planning   $              50,000  

Electrical Electrical Vehicle Replacement   $              33,000  

Electrical Main Street Underground Electrical   $              22,000  

Police Interview Room Recording Equipment   $              11,500  

Police Conference Room Chair Replacement   $              13,800  

Public Works Traffic Paint Machine   $              15,000  

Public Works Emergency Sign Trailer   $              14,000  

Recreation 16 Passenger Van   $              35,000  

Recreation Senior Center Kitchen   $                5,000  

Recreation Sound System Festival Plaza   $              15,000  

Recreation Tot Lot Improvements   $              15,000  

Recreation Union St Park/Chestnut Park Upgrades   $              12,000  

TOTAL CIP  $            241,300  

    
NOW, THEREFORE, by the City Council of the City of Auburn, be it hereby ORDERED: 

 

THAT the excess proceeds of the Bonds, in the amount of $241,300 be and hereby are appropriated 
from the amount borrowed as part of various Bonds to finance the costs of the projects listed above. 

 

THAT the City’s Finance Director / Treasurer be, and hereby is, authorized and empowered in the name 
and on behalf of the City, to do or cause to be done all such acts and things, and to execute and deliver, 
all such financing documents, certificates, and other documents as may be necessary or advisable, with 
the advice of counsel for the City, to carry out the provisions of this Order, as may be necessary or 
desirable. 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One       Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five  
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two                                                                      Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three                             David C. Young, At Large 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

 
Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 
 
 

A Public Notice describing the repurposing of these Bond proceeds borrowed for Various Projects to 
the list above was published on or before May 21, 2018, in the Lewiston Sun-Journal, a daily newspaper 
published in the City of Auburn and in Androscoggin County. 

 
A public hearing was held on June 4, 2018. 



 
 
 
 

City of Auburn 
City Council Information Sheet 

 
 

 

Council Workshop or Meeting Date:    June 4, 2018 
 
Author:  Jill M. Eastman, Finance Director  
 

Subject:  Resolve Adopting the 2018—2019 Annual Appropriation and Revenue Resolve (First Reading and 
Public Hearing) 
 
 

Information:  In accordance with the city Charter, Article 8, Section 8.6, prior to the fiscal year the City Council 
shall adopt an annual appropriation resolve making appropriations by department, fund, services, strategy or 
other organizational unit and authorizing an allocation for each program or activity. 
 

The Council has been supplied with a resolve to adopt the annual appropriations for the City of Auburn, which 
includes final figures for revenue, total appropriation and municipal budget. 
 

The school appropriation resolve has been incorporated into this annual appropriation resolve for the City of 
Auburn. 
 

Two readings are required for passage of this resolve. The second reading will be scheduled for the Council 
meeting on June 18, 2017. 
 

 

City Budgetary Impacts: With this F19 Proposed Budget the tax levy increase is .99%, which is below CPIU at 
2.11%. At this time, the proposed mill rate increase is 2.99%.  
 

 

Staff Recommended Action: Staff recommends passage of the resolve on first reading. 
 

 

Previous Meetings and History: Budget presentation on April 30, 2018, various budget workshops in May. 
 

 
City Manager Comments:  
 

I concur with the recommendation. Signature:    
 

Attachments:  

Resolve for the 2017-2018 Annual Appropriation and Revenue 
Summary of Proposed Budget  
Summary of Estimated Non Property Tax Revenue 
 



10:01 AM 5/31/2018

COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER
ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET
FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 18-19 $ Change % Change

City Expenses
Operating Expenses 28,291,287 29,820,338 29,100,879 809,592 2.86%
Debt Service/TIF 9,416,336 9,782,311 9,752,311 335,975 3.57%
Intergovernmental 4,012,830 4,218,486 4,171,977 159,147 3.97%

Total City Expenses 41,720,453 43,821,135 43,025,167 1,304,714 3.13%
School Expenses

Operating Expenses 39,430,081 43,380,517 43,024,719 3,594,638 9.12%
Debt Service 2,325,374 669,064 669,064 (1,656,310) -71.23%

Total School Expenses 41,755,455 44,049,581 43,693,783 1,938,328 4.64%
Total Expenses 83,475,908 87,870,716 86,718,950 3,243,042 3.89%
Less: Non-Tax Revenues

City 13,746,184 14,134,483 14,514,483 768,299 5.59%
School 23,758,194 25,616,601 25,696,522 1,938,328 8.16%
Total Non-Tax Revenues 37,504,378 39,751,084 40,211,005 2,706,627 7.22%

Tax Levy
City 25,678,045 27,278,886 26,102,918 424,873 1.65%
School 17,997,261 18,432,980 17,997,261 0 0.00%
County 2,296,224 2,407,766 2,407,766 111,542 4.86%
Overlay 82,177 (82,177) -100.00%

Total Tax Levy 46,053,707 48,119,632 46,507,945 454,238 0.99%
Total Assessed Value 2,003,206,026 2,003,206,026 1,964,206,026
Tax Rate

City 12.82 13.62 13.29 0.47 3.67%
School 8.98 9.20 9.16 0.18 1.99%
County 1.15 1.20 1.23 0.08 6.94%
Overlay 0.04 (0.04) -100.00%

Total 22.99 24.02 23.68 0.69 2.99%

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2019 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY18 AND FY19 BUDGETS

Fiscal Year 2019 manager budget summary as of 053018 with reductions to mil rate of 3%1



10:01 AM 5/31/2018

COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 18-19 Year Budget  (Decrease)
Administration
City Clerk 181,332 194,994 185,898 4,566 2.52%
City Manager 581,170 523,086 474,086 (107,084) -18.43%
Finance 675,239 716,591 694,109 18,870 2.79%
Human Resources 156,887 149,953 149,953 (6,934) -4.42%
IT 531,551 639,072 588,403 56,852 10.70%
Mayor & Council 80,300 119,110 111,610 31,310 38.99%

Total Administration 2,206,479 2,342,806 2,204,059 (2,420) -0.11%

Community Services
Health & Social Services
  Administration 77,400 75,290 75,290 (2,110) -2.73%
  Assistance 143,470 148,210 148,210 4,740 3.30%
Economic and Community Development 1,717,028 1,604,550 1,471,918 (245,110) -14.28%
Recreation & Special Events 388,581 434,110 384,630 (3,951) -1.02%
Public Library 998,189 998,189 998,189 0 0.00%

Total Community Services 3,324,668 3,260,349 3,078,237 (246,431) -7.41%

Fiscal Services
Debt Service 6,366,533 6,732,508 6,702,508 335,975 5.28%
Emergency Reserve 415,454 431,003 431,003 15,549 3.74%
Facilities 640,201 668,641 650,641 10,440 1.63%
Transfer to TIF 3,049,803 3,049,803 3,049,803 0 0.00%
Fringe Benefits 5,960,970 6,586,214 6,471,614 510,644 8.57%
Workers' Compensation 555,164 581,360 581,360 26,196 4.72%

Total Fiscal Services 16,988,125 18,049,529 17,886,929 898,804 5.29%

Public Safety
Fire 4,227,575 4,513,031 4,422,256 194,681 4.61%
Fire EMS Transport 708,828 723,681 683,181 (25,647) -3.62%
Police 4,043,998 4,221,080 4,166,631 122,633 3.03%

Total Public Safety 8,980,401 9,457,792 9,272,068 291,667 3.25%

Public Services
Public Services 4,611,116 4,858,944 4,778,668 167,552 3.63%
Solid Waste 964,118 988,013 988,013 23,895 2.48%
Water & Sewer 632,716 645,216 645,216 12,500 1.98%

Total Public Works 6,207,950 6,492,173 6,411,897 203,947 3.29%

Total Municipal 37,707,623 39,602,649 38,853,190 1,145,567 3.04%

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2019 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY18 AND FY19 BUDGETS

2



10:01 AM 5/31/2018

COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 18-19 Year Budget  (Decrease)

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2019 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY18 AND FY19 BUDGETS

Intergovernmental Programs
County Taxes 2,296,224 2,407,766 2,407,766 111,542 4.86%
Tax Sharing 270,000 270,000 270,000 0 0.00%
Auburn-Lewiston Municipal Airport 167,800 172,000 172,000 4,200 2.50%
Lew-Aub Transit Committee 189,949 199,130 199,130 9,181 4.83%
Lew-Aub 911 Communications Center 1,088,857 1,169,590 1,123,081 80,733 7.41%

Total Intergovernmental Programs 4,012,830 4,218,486 4,171,977 159,147 3.97%

Grand Total Municipal 41,720,453 43,821,135 43,025,167 1,304,714 3.13%

     Education Operation 39,430,081 43,380,517 43,024,719 3,950,436 10.02%
     Education Debt Service 2,325,374 669,064 669,064 (1,656,310) -71.23%
Total School 41,755,455 44,049,581 43,693,783 1,938,328 4.64%

Total Budget 83,475,908 87,870,716 86,718,950 3,243,042 3.89%

3



10:01 AM 5/31/2018

COUNCIL DEPARTMENT MANAGER Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED PROPOSED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 18-19 Year Budget  (Decrease)

 CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2019 EXPENDITURES

COMPARISON FY18 AND FY19 BUDGETS

        Non-Property Tax Revenue
                             Municipal 13,746,184 14,134,483 14,514,483 768,299 5.59%
                             Education 23,758,194 25,616,601 25,696,522 1,938,328 8.16%
                             Total 37,504,378 39,751,084 40,211,005 2,706,627 7.22%

        Property Tax Dollars Needed
                             Municipal 27,974,269 29,686,652 28,510,684 536,415 1.92%
                             Education 17,997,261 18,432,980 17,997,261 0 0.00%
                             Total 45,971,530 48,119,632 46,507,945 536,415 1.17%

Property Tax Rate 22.99 24.02 23.68 0.69               2.99%
    Based on Assessed Values of : 2,003,206,026 2,003,206,026 1,964,206,026

Property Tax Rate
     Municipal Tax Rate $14.01 $14.82 $14.52 0.51 3.61%
     Education Tax Rate $8.98 $9.20 $9.16 0.18 2.03%

22.99 24.02 23.68 0.69 2.99%

4



5/31/2018

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2019 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY18 AND FY19 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 18-19 Year Budget  (Decrease)

General Government

Homestead Exemption Reimbursement                          1,015,000    1,015,000      1,190,000        175,000        17.24%

Personal Property Reimbursement 2,000,000    2,150,000      2,175,000        175,000        0.00%

Tree Growth Reimbursement 10,000         10,000           10,000              -                    0.00%

Veterans Reimbursement 18,000         18,000           18,000              -                    0.00%

In Lieu of Taxes                                         90,000         90,000           90,000              -                    0.00%

Excise Tax-Vehicles                                      3,775,000    3,775,000      3,800,000        25,000          0.66%

Excise Tax-Boats 15,000         15,000           15,000              -                    0.00%

Excise Tax-Aircraft 20,000         20,000           20,000              -                    0.00%

State Revenue Sharing                                    1,509,117    1,689,669      1,689,669        180,552        11.96%

Other State Aid                                          4,000           4,000             4,000                -                    0.00%

Penalties & Interest                                     150,000       150,000         150,000           -                    0.00%

Investment Income                                        32,000         32,000           32,000              -                    0.00%

Transfer in from TIF 1,087,818    1,087,818      1,117,818        30,000          2.76%

Transfer in from TIF Workforce Development 200,000       200,000         200,000           -                    0.00%

Transfer in from Recreation Special Revenue 54,718         54,718           54,718              -                    0.00%

Transfer in from PAL Center -                   25,000           25,000              25,000          0.00%

Transfer in from School Dept (Electrician) -                   18,000           18,000              18,000          0.00%

Rental Income (Intermodal) 35,000         35,000           35,000              -                    0.00%

Sale of Property                                         20,000         20,000           20,000              -                    0.00%

Tax Sharing Revenue                                      165,000       165,000         165,000           -                    0.00%

Cable Television Franchise                               150,000       150,000         150,000           -                    0.00%

Cable Television Franchise - City of Lewiston                             63,384         63,384           63,384              -                    0.00%

MMWAC Host Fees                                          215,000       221,000         221,000           6,000            2.79%

Utility Reimbursement 27,500         27,500           27,500              -                    0.00%

Unclassified 10,000         10,000           10,000              -                    0.00%

Fund Balance Contribution 412,500       412,500         527,500           115,000        27.88%

Total General Government 11,079,037  11,458,589    11,828,589      749,552        6.77%

5



5/31/2018

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2019 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY18 AND FY19 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 18-19 Year Budget  (Decrease)

City Clerk

Hunting/Fishing/Dogs                                     2,000           2,000             2,000                -                    0.00%

Neutered Animals                                         3,000           3,000             3,000                -                    0.00%

Voter Reg List                                           100              100                100                   -                    0.00%

Clerk/Sale of Copies                                     100              100                100                   -                    0.00%

City Clerk Notary                                        1,500           1,500             1,500                -                    0.00%

Banner Hanging Fee                                       3,000           3,000             3,000                -                    0.00%

Garage Sale Permits 3,200           3,200             3,200                -                    0.00%

Commercial License                                       50,000         50,000           50,000              -                    0.00%

Taxi License                                             4,000           4,000             4,000                -                    0.00%

Marriage License                                         5,000           5,000             5,000                -                    0.00%

Birth/Death/Marriage Cert                                25,000         25,000           25,000              -                    0.00%

Permits - Burial                                         7,000           7,000             7,000                -                    0.00%

Fines-Dog                                                3,000           3,000             3,000                -                    0.00%

Total City Clerk 106,900       106,900         106,900           -                    0.00%

Finance

Reg - Vehicles                                           60,000         60,000           60,000              -                    0.00%

Total Finance 60,000         60,000           60,000              -                    0.00%

Community Services-ICT

GIS/Data & Maps                                          20                20                  20                     -                    0.00%

Total Community Services-ICT 20                20                  20                     -                    0.00%

Assessing

Maps & Copies                                            20                20                  20                     -                    0.00%

Total Assessing 20                20                  20                     -                    0.00%

Health & Social Services

GA Reimbursement                                         95,000         103,747         103,747           8,747            9.21%

Total Health & Social Services 95,000         103,747         103,747           8,747            9.21%

6



5/31/2018

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2019 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY18 AND FY19 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 18-19 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Planning & Permitting

Maps & Copies                                            500              500                500                   -                    0.00%

Departmental Reviews 16,000         16,000           16,000              -                    0.00%

Fire Alarm Inspections                                   29,000         29,000           29,000              -                    0.00%

Citation Ordinance                                       2,000           2,000             2,000                -                    0.00%

Advertising Costs 5,000           5,000             5,000                -                    0.00%

Permits - Building                                       100,000       100,000         110,000           10,000          10.00%

CDBG Reimbursement for Services 214,430       214,430         214,430           -                    0.00%

Permits - Electrical                                     18,000         18,000           18,000              -                    0.00%

Permits - Plumbing                                       11,000         11,000           11,000              -                    0.00%

Permits - Sign                                           5,000           5,000             5,000                -                    0.00%

Total Planning & Permitting 400,930       400,930         410,930           10,000          2.49%

Community Services-Engineering

Fees - Inspection                                        6,000           6,000             6,000                -                    0.00%

Fees - Drive Opening                                     200              200                200                   -                    0.00%

Fees - Bid Documents 1,000           1,000             1,000                -                    0.00%

Permits - Fill                                           1,000           1,000             1,000                -                    0.00%

Permits - Street Opening                                 40,000         40,000           40,000              -                    0.00%

Total Community Services-Engineering 48,200         48,200           48,200              -                    0.00%

Fire Department

Copies of Reports                                        200              200                200                   -                    0.00%

EMS Transport 1,250,000    1,250,000      1,250,000        -                    0.00%

Salvage Calls                                            100              100                100                   -                    0.00%

Permits - Oil Burner                                     800              800                800                   -                    0.00%

Total Fire Department 1,251,100    1,251,100      1,251,100        -                    0.00%

7



5/31/2018

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2019 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY18 AND FY19 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 18-19 Year Budget  (Decrease)

Police Department

Accident & Police                                        12,000         12,000           12,000              -                    0.00%

Court                                                    10,000         10,000           10,000              -                    0.00%

Photos & Tapes                                           3,500           3,500             3,500                -                    0.00%

False Alarms                                             12,000         12,000           12,000              -                    0.00%

Animal Impound 1,000           1,000             1,000                -                    0.00%

Veh Rel/Non Driver                                       2,000           2,000             2,000                -                    0.00%

Veh Rel/Driver Licence                                   13,000         13,000           13,000              -                    0.00%

ARRA Cops Grant 12,477         12,477           12,477              -                    0.00%

MDEA Reimbursement 170,000       170,000         170,000           -                    0.00%

Permits - Firearms                                       4,000           4,000             4,000                -                    0.00%

Fines - Parking Violations                               65,000         65,000           65,000              -                    0.00%

Total Police Department 304,977       304,977         304,977           -                    0.00%

Public Works

State/Local Road Assistance                              400,000       400,000         400,000           -                    0.00%

Total Public Works 400,000       400,000         400,000           -                    0.00%

Total Municipal 13,746,184  14,134,483    14,514,483      768,299        5.59%

8



5/31/2018

CITY OF AUBURN
FY 2019 REVENUES

COMPARISON FY18 AND FY19 BUDGETS

COUNCIL MANAGER COUNCIL Increase
ADOPTED PROPOSED ADOPTED  (Decrease) Percentage of 
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET from Prior Increase

CLASSIFICATION FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 18-19 Year Budget  (Decrease)

School Department

Reg Secondary Tuition                                    160,174       160,973         160,973           799               0.50%

SOS Tuition                                              107,576       60,000           60,000              (47,576)         -44.23%

Adult Ed Tuition                                         93,300         93,300           93,300              -                    0.00%

State Subsidy for Education                              21,526,533  23,678,756    23,678,756      2,152,223     10.00%

Debt Service Reimbursement                               641,790       624,158         624,158           (17,632)         -2.75%

Capital Reserve-EL Project (128,755)      -                        

Special Ed/Mainecare                                     135,000       120,000         120,000           (15,000)         -11.11%

State Agency Clients                                     70,000         30,000           30,000              (40,000)         -57.14%

State Aid for Adult Education                            107,694       91,918           91,918              (15,776)         -14.65%

Miscellaneous                                            88,000         68,000           68,000              (20,000)         -22.73%

Daycare Rent 50,000         50,000           50,000              -                    0.00%

Fund Balance 906,882       639,496         719,417           (187,465)       0.00%

Total School 23,758,194  25,616,601    25,696,522      1,938,328     8.16%

Total Non-Property Tax Revenue - Municipal 13,746,184  14,134,483    14,514,483      768,299        5.59%

Total Non-Property Tax Revenue - School 23,758,194  25,616,601    25,696,522      1,938,328     8.16%

Total Non-Property Tax Revenue 37,504,378  39,751,084    40,211,005      2,706,627     7.22%

Total Proposed Budget - Municipal 41,720,453  43,025,167    43,025,167      1,304,714     3.13%

Total Proposed Budget - School 41,755,455  43,693,783    43,693,783      1,938,328     4.64%

Total Proposed Budget 83,475,908  86,718,950    86,718,950      3,243,042     3.89%

Total Property Tax Dollars Needed - Municipal 27,974,269  28,890,684    28,510,684      536,415        1.92%

Total Property Tax Dollars Needed - School 17,997,261  18,077,182    17,997,261      -                    0.00%

Total Property Tax Dollars Needed 45,971,530  46,967,866    46,507,945      536,415        1.17%

9



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One 
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 
Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
David C. Young, At Large 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 

 

 

IN CITY COUNCIL 
 

RESOLVE  07-06042018 

 
RESOLVED, that the following be, and hereby is the Annual Appropriation and Revenue 

Resolve of the City of Auburn for the fiscal year 2018-2019, which includes the amounts 
appropriated herein and revenues from all sources beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019. 
 

The estimated aggregate amount of non-property tax revenue is $40,211,005 with a 
municipal revenue budget of $14,514,483 and a School Department revenue budget of 
$25,696,522. 
 
 The aggregate appropriation for the City of Auburn is $86,718,950, with a municipal budget 
of $40,617,401 County budget of $2,407,766 and a School Department budget of $41,755,455 
which received School Committee approval on May 3, 2017, and school budget approved at the 
May 14, 2018 Council Meeting pursuant to the School Budget Validation vote on June 12, 2018, in 
accordance with Maine Revised Statues, Title 20-A § 1486 and based on the budget submitted to 
the Auburn City Council on April 30, 2018, by the City Manager, and notification was posted on the 
City of Auburn website on May 31, 2017 that a public hearing would be held on June 4, 2018 at 7:00 
p.m. and said hearing having been held on that date, and as amended by the City Council, the same 
is hereby appropriated for the fiscal year 2018-2019 beginning July 1, 2018 for the lawful 
expenditures of the City of Auburn and the County of Androscoggin taxes, and said amounts are 
declared not to be in excess of the estimated revenue from taxation and sources other than taxation 
for the fiscal year of 2018-2019. 
 

SCHOOL BUDGET ARTICLES 

Ordered that the Auburn City Council hereby adopts and approves the following School Budget articles for 
Fiscal Year 2018-2019 

 

1. That $17,432,587 be authorized to be expended for Regular Instruction; 
 

2. That $ 10,042,275 be authorized to be expended for Special Education; 
 

3. That $-0- be authorized to be expended for Career and Technical Education; 
 

4. That $ 859,072 be authorized to be expended for Other Instruction; 
 

5. That $ 4,841,867 be authorized to be expended for Student and Staff Support; 
 

6. That $   925,841 be authorized to be expended for System Administration; 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One 
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 
Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
David C. Young, At Large 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 

 

7. That $ 1,498,859 be authorized to be expended for School Administration; 
 

8. That $ 1,881,183 be authorized to be expended for Transportation and Buses; 
 

9. That $ 5,128,170 be authorized to be expended for Facilities Maintenance; 
 

10. That $ 669,064 be authorized to be expended for Debt Service and Other Commitments; 
 

11. That $ 39,243 be authorized to be expended for All Other Expenditures; 
 

12. That $ 41,084,848 be appropriated for the total cost of funding public education from Pre- 
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and that 
 $16,781,933 be raised as the municipality’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from 
Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in 
accordance with the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15688; 

 
Explanation: The city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-
kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding 

 

Act is the amount of money determined by state law to be the minimum amount that a 
municipality must raise in order to receive the full amount of state dollars. 

 
13. That $44,905 be raised and appropriated for the annual payments on debt service previously 
approved by the city’s legislative body for non-state-funded school construction projects or non-state-
funded portions of school construction projects, in addition to the funds appropriated as the local share 
of the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 
as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act in accordance with Maine Revised 
Statues, Title 20-A, Section 15690 (2A) ; 

 
Explanation: Non-state-funded debt service is the amount of money needed for the annual 
payments on the city’s long-term debt for major capital school construction projects that are not 
approved for state subsidy. The bonding of this long-term debt was previously approved by the 
voters or other legislative body. 

 
14. That $980,019 be raised and appropriated in additional local funds, which exceeds the State’s 
Essential Programs and Services allocation model by $980,019, as required to fund the budget 
recommended by the School Committee. 

 
The School Committee recommends $980,019, which exceeds the State’s Essential Programs and Services 
allocation model by $980,019. The School Committee gives the following reasons for exceeding the State’s 
Essential Programs and Services funding model: 
 
 

 
 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One 
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 
Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
David C. Young, At Large 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 

The Essential Programs and Services funding model does not recognize all of the costs of special education 
services, transportation services, instructional services, co-curricular services and other services that the 
School Department provides. 

 
Explanation: The additional local funds are those locally raised funds over and above the city’s local 
contribution to the total cost of funding public education from Pre- kindergarten to grade 12 as 
described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act and local amounts raised for the 
annual payment on non-state-funded debt service that will help achieve the school department 
budget for educational programs. 

 
15. That the school committee be authorized to expend $43,318,161 for the fiscal year beginning July 
1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019 from the city’s contribution to the total cost of funding public education 
from Pre-kindergarten to grade 12 as described in the Essential Programs and Services Funding Act, non-
state-funded school construction projects, additional local funds for school purposes under the Maine 
Revised Statutes, Title 20-A, section 15690, unexpended balances, tuition receipts, fund balances, state 
subsidy and other receipts for the support of schools;  

 

16. That the City of Auburn appropriate $375,622 for Adult Education and raise $190,404.00 as the 
local share, with authorization to expend any additional, incidental or miscellaneous receipts in the interest 
and for the well-being of the adult education program. 

 
17. That in addition to amounts approved in the preceding articles, the School Committee be 
authorized to expend such other sums as may be received from federal or state grants or programs or 
other sources during the fiscal year for school purposes, provided that such grants, programs or other 
sources do not require the expenditure of other funds not previously appropriated. 

 

We the Council of the City of Auburn adopt and approve the following items  

 

RESOLVED, that the following be, and hereby is the Annual Budget and Revenue Estimate for the 
City of Auburn Enterprise Fund – Norway Savings Bank Arena for the fiscal year 2018 – 2019, which 
includes the amounts budgeted herein beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019. 

The Enterprise Fund-Norway Savings Bank Arena estimated amount of non-property tax revenue is 
$1,244,000. 

The Enterprise Fund-Norway Savings Bank Arena operating budget is $1,242,425.  
 

 If the Enterprise Fund-Norway Savings Bank Arena has a deficit at the end of the fiscal year, this 
deficit will be covered by the General Fund and will be considered a loan to the Arena to be paid back in 
subsequent years. 
 

RESOLVED, that the following be, and hereby is the Annual Budget and Revenue Estimate for the 
City of Auburn Enterprise Fund – Ingersoll Turf Facility for the fiscal year 2018 – 2019, which includes the 
amounts budgeted herein beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019. 

The Enterprise Fund-Ingersoll Turf Facility estimated amount of non-property tax revenue is 
$225,040. 

The Enterprise Fund- Ingersoll Turf Facility operating budget is $192,705 and capital budget of 
$30,000. 

 

 



Holly C. Lasagna, Ward One 
Robert P. Hayes, Ward Two 
Andrew D. Titus, Ward Three 
Alfreda M. Fournier, Ward Four 

Leroy G. Walker, Ward Five 
Belinda A. Gerry, At Large 
David C. Young, At Large 

Jason J. Levesque, Mayor 

 

RESOLVED, The City is authorized to accept grants and forfeitures and to expend sums that 
may be received from grants and forfeitures for municipal purposes during the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2018 and ending June 30, 2019, provided that such grants and forfeitures do not 
require the expenditure of other funds not previously appropriated. 

 

RESOLVED, that fifty percent (50%) of all real estate taxes assessed as in the annual 
commitment, committed to the Tax Collector, shall be due proportionately from each tax payer on 
September 17, 2018 and the remaining fifty percent (50%) shall be due on March 15, 2018. 
 

Except as may be provided by resolve regarding payments in accordance with an installment 
payment plan, any real estate taxes remaining uncollected on September 16, 2018 and March 15, 
2019 respectively shall bear interest at a rate of 7% per annum from and after such dates. 
 
 Personal property taxes shall be due and payable on or before September 17, 2018. Any 
personal property taxes remaining unpaid on September 18, 2018 shall bear an interest rate of 7% 
per annum from and after such date. Interest on all delinquent taxes shall be computed on a daily 
basis and shall be collected by the Tax Collector. The Tax Collector is authorized to accept tax 
prepayments. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 


	0  Agenda 06-04-2018
	1  Info Sheet Joint TIF Policy
	1a  Joint TIF docs
	2  Info Sheet opportunity zone
	2a  Opportrunity Zones
	3  Infor Sheet LA911 Radio System Proposal Discussion - Continued
	3a  LA911 FY19 PP-Full Page
	LA911 FY19 Budget Proposal
	LA911 FY19 Budget Proposal
	LA911 FY19 Budget Proposal
	Slide Number 4
	Overview
	FY18 Project Description�
	Radio Antenna Project Partner
	Goff Hill Tower Project
	Webber Ave Communcation Shelter 
	FY19 Project Description
	FY19 Project Description
	FY20 Project Description

	3b  Radio System SubCommittee May 2 2018
	3x  Info sheet    MARIJUANA    INFO SHEET
	4  FERLAND    COUNCIL INFO SHEET    5-2018
	4a  FERLAND    MEMO TO CITY MANAGER    5-2018
	4b  Order 49-06042018 forfeiture asset transfer FERLAND
	5  Minutes 5-21-2018
	6  Info Sheet - Communication - Liberty Festival
	6  Liberty Fest Appl
	6a  Liberty Fest Map
	6b  Sec._14_252.___Clerk_s_notification_to_council. (1)
	7  Info Sheet 33 Dunn St
	7a  33 Dunn St ZC Planning Board Report to CC
	7b  33 Dunn St Staff Report to Planning Board - FINAL - w attach
	33 Dunn St ZC Staff Report 3-27-18.pdf
	33 Dunn.pdf
	NB_Comp_Plan_zoning.pdf
	DIVISION_11.___NEIGHBORHOOD_BUSINESS_DISTRICT
	NB_Comp_Plan


	7c  Order 50-06042018  33 Dunn St - FLU
	7d  Info Sheet 33 Dunn St
	7e  Ordinance 02-06042018 Dunn Street
	8  Info sheet  bond order fy 18-19 CIP
	8a  Bonds and reallocation lists FY 19
	FY 19  Bonds
	FY 19 unallocated

	8b  Auburn 2019 CIP bonds - notice of public hearing
	8c  fy 18 bonds
	FY 19  Bonds

	8d  Order 51-06042018 Auburn 2019 CIP bond order 060418
	9  info sheet for council meeting 060418 reallocation bond order fy 18-19 CIP
	9a  Public Hearing notice BondReallocation
	9b  Order 52-06042018 Reallocation bond order 060418
	10  info sheet for appropriation resolve 060418
	10a  info appropriation resolve 060418
	new summary
	Exp Summary
	Revenue

	10b  Resolve 07-06042018 Appropriation Resolve 1 for FY 18-19



